
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 17, 2012, ROY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

1. Approval of April 3, 2012, minutes 
 
2. Guard/Reserve presentation 
 
3. Recognition of Roy City Founders 
 
4. Public comments 
 
5. Recognition of March 2012 Employee of the Month 
 
6. Approval of Contract 2012-1 awarding the 4300 West Storm Drain Project 
 
7. Update on the Riverdale Road Project 
 
8. City Manager’s report 
 
8. Mayor and Council reports 
 
10. Adjourn  



Minutes of the Roy City Council Meeting held April 17, 2012, at 6:00 p.m. in the City 
Council Room of the Roy City Municipal Building. 
 
The meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting designated by resolution.  Notice of 
the meeting was provided to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours in advance.  A 
copy of the agenda was posted. 
 
The following members were in attendance: 
 
Mayor Joe H. Ritchie    City Manager Chris Davis 
Councilman John Cordova    City Attorney Andy Blackburn 
Councilman Willard Cragun   Secretary Michelle Drago 
Councilman Brad Hilton 
 
Excused: Councilman Michael Stokes 
  Councilman Dave Tafoya 
 
Also present were: Greg Whinham, Police Chief; Jon Ritchie, Fire Chief; Ross Oliver, 
Public Works Director; Bob Dandoy; Marge Becraft; Shayla Pugmire; Jamirra Johnsten; 
Tucker Tamien; Braxton Prether; Kris Peterson; Kaylee England; Kelsey Heileson; 
Megan Wehrman; Jace Loveridge; Jana Loveridge; Shelbie Durrant; Emily Snodgrass; 
Eric Peterson; Megan Watkins; Dustin Christensen; Darl Field; Kaythryn Stark; Adam 
Kennedy; Mike Padouch; Emily Burton; Amber Jensen; Elaine Allington; Matthew D. J. 
Whitfield; Scott Weatbrook; Bradley Weatbrook; Joshua McKinney; Jessica McKinney; 
Ashlee Hackworth; Katelyn Combs; Craig Westergard; Brenda Toledo; Taylor Shelton; 
Jennis Isaacson; Chase Wilson; Nick Scarborough; Emily Herest; Amanda Cragun; 
Bryer Hamilton; Rachael Waller; Ashley Waller; Sklyer Hemmert; Ryan McClain; 
Heather McClain; Colbin McClain; Mena Rivera; Kylie Ross; Rachel Trotter; Garrett Hill; 
Sam Jojola; J.R. Lozaro; Jordan Beyer; Jason Wiberg; Kay Hargis; Liz Atisnme; Fay 
Field; Darcy Lee Barnes; Betty Patterson Calvert; Roger Thomas; and Michael 
Shannon. 
 
Moment of Silence: Councilman Cordova 
 
Pledge of Allegiance:  Councilman Cordova 
 
Mayor Ritchie welcomed students from Roy and Fremont High Schools. 
 
1. APPROVAL OF APRIL 3, 2012, MINUTES 
 

Councilman Cragun moved to approve the minutes of April 3, 2012, as written.  

Councilman Hilton seconded the motion.  Council members Cordova, Cragun, 

and Hilton voted “aye.”  The motion carried. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
April 17, 2012 
Page 2 
 

2. GUARD/RESERVE PRESENTATION 
 
Kay Hargis stated that he was representing the Department of Defense as an employee 
of the Guard and Reserves.  Since 911, the Guard and Reserves had supplied 
833,000 soldiers in defense of our country all over the world.  There were over 75,000 
members of the Guard and Reserves currently on active duty.  Forty-eight percent 
(48%) of the United States fighting force consisted of the Guard and Reserves.  Part of 
his duties with the Department of Defense was to recognize outstanding support from 
employers of those who reported to the Guard and Reserves.  Police Chief Greg 
Whinham was nominated by Airman Barker in February.  Airman Barker was currently 
on active duty and would be for another year.  Airman Barker wanted to recognize 
Chief Whinham for supporting his endeavors to serve the government. 
 
Kay Hargis presented a plaque to Chief Whinham. 
 
Police Chief Greg Whinham stated that it was an honor to be nominated by Airman 
Barker.  He appreciated Airman Barker’s service.  When he was a young officer, he 
watched older officers, like Kay Hargis, juggle their jobs with military service. 
 
Kay Hargis also presented an award to Mayor Ritchie recognizing Roy City’s support of 
the military leave for Guard and Reserve members and for taking care of military 
families by helping with such things as utility bills. 
 
3. RECOGNITION OF ROY CITY FOUNDERS 
 
Bob Dandoy, Committee Chairman, stated that Roy City and the Diamond Jubilee 
Committee wanted to recognize those who lived in Roy when it was incorporated.  
They had witnessed the growth of Roy City. 
 
Mayor Ritchie presented Kaythryn Stark; Fay Field; Elaine Allington; Darcy Lee Barnes; 
and Betty Patter Calvert with commemorative coins and certificates recognizing them 
for being pioneer citizens to the founding of Roy City on March 10, 1037.  For over 75 
years, they had stood as witnesses to the foundation and growth of a great city. 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Matthew D. J. Whitfield, 2885 West 4375 South, stated that he was recently driving with 
his mother and needed a restroom.  They were passing West Park, but found the 
restrooms there closed.  Mr. Whitfield thought the restrooms were supposed to be 
open to the public.  However, they were closed the majority of the time.  When they 
were open, they were dirty. 
 



Roy City Council Minutes 
April 17, 2012 
Page 3 
 

Mayor Ritchie asked what time of day Mr. Whitfield found the restrooms closed.  Mr. 
Whitfield could not remember.  Mayor Ritchie said the City had to close the restrooms 
due to vandalism.  It was too expensive to keep them open.  If everyone in attendance 
would help fight the vandalism, it would be helpful.   
 
Councilman Cragun stated that he had seen the restrooms after they had been 
vandalized.  It was very difficult for the City to maintain the restroom facilities with 
constant damage being done.  The City needed help.  Sometimes peer pressure 
could do more than the City could.  The City would like to leave the restrooms open. 
 
Councilman Hilton asked about the condition of the restrooms.  Mr. Whitfield said he 
had seen the restrooms with urine, feces, and toilet paper all over.  Councilman Hilton 
said that was one reason the restrooms were locked. 
 
Chris Davis asked which restrooms at West Park had been locked.  Mr. Whitfield said 
it was the one by the playground.  Mr. Davis said it should have been open during the 
day because the soccer fields were being used.  The restrooms by the baseball 
diamonds were just barely opening.  Restrooms were opened seasonally. 
 
Councilman Cordova asked if Mr. Whitfield had a suggestion.  Mr. Whitfield suggested 
a park ranger that patrolled from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 
Mayor Ritchie said the City had looked into surveillance cameras, but they were 
extremely expensive. 
 
Bradley and Scott Weatbrook, 2375 West 4350 South, stated that he had found horrible 
words on the plastic rock in the playground area at Sandridge Park.  Mayor Ritchie said 
that the City struggled with graffiti.  It had a contract with the Juvenile Court for the 
removal of graffiti.  Chris Davis thought the rock had been cleaned up prior to the 
recent Easter egg hunt.  He would check on it. 
 
Scott Weatbrook asked who to call if graffiti was found.  Chris Davis said they could 
call the City Manager’s office at 801-774-1020.  The City had a contract for the removal 
of graffiti.  The Juvenile Court used offenders to remove it. 
 
Roger Thomas, 5590 South 3400 West, was concerned about the new bike path.  He 
noticed that in some places there weren’t signs to warn vehicular traffic that the 
entryway to the path was coming up.  Mayor Ritchie stated that the City was working 
with UTA to add signs and benches along the path. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
April 17, 2012 
Page 4 
 

5. RECOGNITION OF MARCH 2012 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH 
 
Mayor Ritchie stated that Fire Chief Jon Ritchie had nominated Captain Chase Stark 
and Firefighters Shawn Stanger and David Kingsley as the March 2012 Employees of 
the Month.  On Sunday April 11, 2012, the Fire Department had a medical call at the 
Royal Garden Apartments at 5000 South 1900 West.  After treating the patient and 
having a signed release, the crew exited the apartment to return to the fire station.  
They were stopped by a lady waiting on the sidewalk in an electric wheelchair.  She 
asked if they could help her get into her apartment as she couldn’t get her wheelchair 
up and over the step at her door.  Shawn and Dave asked how she had done it in the 
past.  She said the landlord would not put a ramp up to her door.  They helped her 
into her apartment then returned to the station.  They contacted Captain Stark asking 
for permission to go to Home Depot in Riverdale to purchase some materials to build 
this nice lady a ramp for her door.  Captain Stark agreed with their request, and sent 
them to get the needed supplies.  While at Home Depot, Dave and Shawn ran into the 
store’s assistant manager, Melanie Jojola, who inquired about the project they were 
doing.  She kindly donated all the materials needed for the ramp.  They built the ramp 
at the station, took it over, and placed it at the door. Captain Stark, Shawn, and Dave 
had followed the department’s “Firefighter Empowerment” card.  A portion of it read, “Is 
it the right thing for the customer?  Is it the right thing for the department?  If the 
answer is ‘yes,’ then “JUST DO IT.”  These guys did it!  They went above and beyond 
in doing this act of kindness.  The Fire Chief expected these types of acts when the 
opportunity arose.  These guys took the opportunity to make Roy City and the Fire 
Department look very good.  This was the type of professionalism that was 
demonstrated by the great personnel of the Roy City Fire Department. 
 
Mayor Ritchie presented plaques and checks to Captain Chase Stark and Firefighters 
Shawn Stanger and David Kingsley. 
 
Captain Stark stated that the project was carried out by Shawn and David.  David 
came up with the idea and brought tools from home.  They did some work on their own 
time. 
 
6. APPROVAL OF CONTRACT NO. 2012-1 AWARDING THE 4300 WEST 

STORM DRAIN PROJECT 
 
Ross Oliver, Public Works Director, stated that bids for the 4300 West Storm Drain 
Project were opened on April 5, 2012.  Eight contractors responded with bids ranging 
from $373,917.00 to $578,631.00.  The engineer’s estimate was $432,714.00.  Public 
Works and the City Engineer recommended that the project be awarded to B & K Fox 
Contractors, Inc. for $373,917.00. 
 



Roy City Council Minutes 
April 17, 2012 
Page 5 
 

Mayor Ritchie asked what the project entailed.  Mr. Oliver said there was an open 
drainage ditch on the west side of 4300 West with varying sizes of pipe.  The project 
entailed removing all existing pipe and installing new 36 reinforced concrete pipe from 
4800 South to the Howard Slough.  The project would replace the drainage basin the 
City now longer had. 
 
Councilman Cragun asked if all of the work would be done off of the road.  The City 
just paved and chipped part of 4300 West.  Mr. Oliver said all of the work would be 
west of the curb and gutter, except for a small portion located in Hooper City.  The 
work in that area would actually be underground.  Weber County would be contributing 
$100,000.00 toward the project. 
 
Councilman Cordova asked about B & K Fox.  Mr. Oliver said the City had worked with 
B & K Fox before.  They just completed a project in South Ogden City, which South 
Ogden was very pleased with.  The City Engineer, Mark Miller, met with B & K Fox to 
make sure they could do the work for the bid amount. 
 
Councilman Hilton asked if Roy City owned all of 4300 West.  Ross Oliver said the 
City’s west boundary was located one foot west of the 4300 West right-of-way.  This 
project would help alleviate flooding in this area caused by Roy City’s storm water. 
 

Councilman Cordova moved to approve Contract No. 2012-1 awarding the 4300 

West Storm Drain Project to B & K Fox Contractors, Inc. for $373,917.00 and to 

authorize the Mayor to sign the Notice of Award and the Contract Agreement.  

Councilman Hilton seconded the motion.  Councilmen Cordova, Hilton, and 

Cragun voted “aye.”  The motion carried.  (Copy filed for record). 
 
7. UPDATE ON THE RIVERDALE ROAD PROJECT 
 
Kris Peterson, UDOT Region One Director, stated that Chris Davis had asked him to 
update the Council on the Riverdale Road Project.  He was pleased to announce that 
the State Legislature had authorized $28 million to complete the Riverdale Road project 
from I-84 to SR108 (1900 West) in Roy.  The design work would be completed, and 
construction would begin in July 2013.  The project would include reconstruction of the 
intersection at 1900 West and Riverdale Road.  The design included triple southbound 
lanes and two eastbound lanes.  Nineteen Hundred West (1900 West) would be 
restriped from 5600 South to Riverdale Road for three lanes in each direction. 
 
Mayor Ritchie said the City was excited to that this work was going to be done. 
 



Roy City Council Minutes 
April 17, 2012 
Page 6 
 

Kris Peterson said they planned to pursue the same type of contracting method they did 
on the first two phases.  With the project funded and designed, they would approach 
Federal Highways about funding for the interstate ramps. 
Councilman Cragun asked if the island in the middle of the 1900 West Riverdale Road 
intersection would be removed.  Mr. Peterson did not know what the final design would 
look like.  He offered to review the preliminary drawings with the Council in a work 
session. 
 
Councilman Cragun stated that a committee of local people had worked with the 
businesses and merchants in Riverdale.  It had worked well.  Kris Peterson they 
planned to use the same type of committee on this project as well. 
 
Councilman Cordova asked if there had been discussion about making I-15 and 
Riverdale Road a full interchange.  Kris Peterson said that when the project was 
designed they could begin discussions with Federal Highways. 
 
Kris Peterson said there was a project planned to replace the concrete decking on the 
I-84 bridge that crossed I-15 (affectionately called Applesauce Curve) this summer.  
The project would be completed in two weeks with the contractor working twenty-four 
hours a day seven days a week.   The project included repaving I-84 from the bridge to 
Riverdale Road and the westbound portion as well.  He thanked Chris Davis and 
Mayor Ritchie for being such good liaisons. 
 
8. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Chris Davis stated that the next town meeting would be held on May 2, 2012, at 6:00 
p.m. at North Park Elementary.  The topics of discussion would be the plans for North 
Park and  an update on the Ogden Airport. 
 
Chris Davis stated that two work sessions needed to be scheduled to discuss water and 
sewer and the budget.  The Council agreed on back-to-back work sessions on May 8

th
 

and 9
th

.  Mr. Davis said they would probably be held in the basement conference room 
of the Municipal Building at 6:00 p.m. 
 
9. MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Councilman Hilton updated the Council on the Mosquito Abatement District’s annual 
report.  The number of mosquitos had increased over the last several years due to the 
wet weather.  Weber County led the state in mosquito kills.  It had a great program.  If 
someone had an activity planned in their yard or a park, the Mosquito Abatement 
District would spray the area the night before.  The forecast this year was fewer 
mosquitos because the weather had been dryer. 



Roy City Council Minutes 
April 17, 2012 
Page 7 
 

 
Councilman Cragun stated that he had seen an increase in the number of planes using 
the Ogden Airport in the past few months.  He read an article in the newspaper that the 
Ogden Airport was trying to bring in commercial planes.  He felt that should be 
discussed at the work session.  Chris Davis said the Royal Eccles, the airport 
manager, had indicated they were looking at bringing in a rural carrier with small jets.  
Ogden City would like that to happen for economic development.  He would try to get 
more information.  Mayor Ritchie said the City had expressed its concerns and met 
with the Director of Traffic Control and the FAA.  The administration would keep the 
Council informed. 
 
Mayor Ritchie thanked the Council members for attending the recent Utah League of 
Cities and Towns’ Conference.  The City received benefit from training and interaction 
with vendors and other elected officials across the state. 
 
10. ADJOURN  
 

Councilman Hilton moved to adjourn at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Joe H. Ritchie 
      Mayor 
 
Attest:       
 
 
 
                                             
Amy Mortenson 
Recorder 
 
dc:capr1712 


